

# **Gift Acceptance Policy**

The Ventura College Foundation (Foundation) welcomes gifts to benefit Ventura College (VC). The Foundation will endeavor in all instances to work with donors and their advisors to help assure that the goals of each contributor are accomplished.

This policy is intended for use as a guideline to the Foundation in accepting gifts; to outside advisors who assist in the gift planning process; and to prospective donors who wish to make gifts to the Foundation. Gifts will be accepted from individuals, corporations and foundations in a manner that supports the purposes and activities of the Foundation and VC. Specific gifts to the Foundation will be considered on their merits, and final action will be taken by those authorized by the Foundation Board of Directors to do so when appropriate.

The Ventura College Foundation Executive Director and Director of Philanthropy are ready to provide donors and their advisors with the information necessary to make sound decisions regarding the donor's philanthropic goals.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

GENERAL POLICY GUIDELINES	2
GIFT REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE	2
MORALITY CLAUSE	3
SOLICITATION OF GIFTS	3
ACCEPTED GIFTS AND REPORTING	4
Designated and Undesignated Gifts	4
Gifts Accepted Without Prior Review	4
Gifts Accepted Subject to Prior Review	8
CAMPAIGNS	11
PAYMENT OF FEES RELATED TO GIFTS	13
RESTRICTIONS	14
RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT	14
NAMING OPPORTUNITIES	14
SUNSET CLAUSE	15
APPENDIX A: DONOR BILL OF RIGHTS	16
APPENDIX B: VCCCD - Naming Buildings Policy	17



# **GENERAL POLICY GUIDELINES**

- 1. All contributions made to the Foundation are the property of the Foundation. Any restrictions placed on donations will be included in the standard bookkeeping for the Foundation.
- 2. All gifts to the Foundation will comply with IRS requirements.
- 3. All restricted gifts will be assessed a 10% sustainability fee as per Board authorization as of March 20, 2020.
- 4. Restricted gifts towards campus programs or the College will be subject to Ventura Community College District policies.
- 5. All information concerning prospective donors shall be confidential. No information shall be released to the public without securing the prior permission of the donor.
- 6. Donors shall be encouraged to secure the advice of independent legal and tax counsel in all matters pertaining to gifts to the Foundation. The Foundation does not pay for a donor's professional services in respect to a major gift.
- 7. The Foundation shall seek the advice of legal counsel in matters relating to the acceptance of gifts when appropriate.
- 8. Unless otherwise negotiated, gifts of property will be converted into cash at the earliest opportunity, in consideration to current market conditions and the use of the property in the accomplishment of the mission of the Foundation.
- 9. Donors of property gifts of over \$5,000 (except gifts of publicly traded stock) must obtain an appraisal by an independent, third party, licensed appraiser in accordance with current tax law requirements.
- 10. As academic and student support programs move forward, or in the event that unforeseen changes of a political, economic, social or educational nature make the use of the gift, as provided, no longer practical and desirable, the Board of Directors of Ventura College Foundation in consultation with the President of Ventura College are authorized to confer with the Donors when practicable and make such changes in the use of the income from this gift as they deem advisable. Such use must be in keeping with the spirit in which the gift is accepted, in compliance with current laws, and shall be for purposes similar to those set forth in the gift agreement.
- 11. The Foundation has adopted and follows the Donor Bill of Rights (Appendix A) to ensure its donors and prospective donors can have full confidence in the Foundation's work.

# **GIFT REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE**

Any questions which arise in the review and acceptance of gifts to the Foundation will be referred to the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Director of Philanthropy is charged with the responsibility of reviewing all gifts made to the Foundation and properly screening and accepting those gifts and making recommendations to the Board on gift acceptance issues when appropriate.

The Director of Philanthropy will seek and use as the basis for their review and decisions the analysis, input and recommendations of the Finance Committee as established by the Board of Directors.

The Foundation welcomes unrestricted gifts, and restricted gifts for specific programs and purposes, provided that such gifts are consistent with its stated mission, purposes and priorities. The Foundation retains the right and discretion to decline a gift if the gift is overly restrictive, would violate its organizational mandate, or would be cumbersome to administer compared to the benefit it offers. All final decisions on the restrictive nature of a gift, and its acceptance or refusal, shall be made by the Finance Committee in consultation with the Director of Philanthropy and Executive Director.

The following gifts are acceptable under this policy:

- 1. Cash
- 2. Pledges
- 3. Tangible Personal Property
- 4. Securities: Publicly Traded and Closely Held
- 5. Real Estate
- 6. Charitable Remainder Trusts and Lead Trusts
- 7. Retirement Plan Beneficiary Designations
- 8. Bequests
- 9. Other gifts at the discretion of the Finance Committee.

# **MORALITY CLAUSE**

If at any time the donor or their name may compromise the public trust or the reputation of the Foundation, including acts of moral turpitude, the institution with the approval of the Board of Directors has the right to remove the name and/or return the gift.

#### **SOLICITATION OF GIFTS**

Any formal solicitation of gifts to the Foundation will be made by authorized representatives, including staff, and key volunteers including the Board of Directors. All employees, representatives or friends of the Foundation are encouraged to refer any prospective donor to the Foundation.



# **ACCEPTED GIFTS AND REPORTING**

# **Designated and Undesignated Gifts**

Gifts may be designated for a specific program, or they may be undesignated, available for meeting VC's highest priorities. If the donor wishes the gift to be used in a certain way, the donor can indicate their preference in writing. If a donor does not indicate a preference, the gift will be considered undesignated.

# **Gifts Accepted Without Prior Review**

Certain gifts generally may be accepted without review. Examples of gifts not subject to prior review include:

#### 1. Cash

The Foundation accepts all gifts by cash, credit card, online or check. If by check, it must be made payable to "Ventura College Foundation" and not to any employee or volunteer. Gifts will be reported at face value.

#### 2. Pledges

A pledge is a written statement of intention to pay a specified amount sometime in the future; it may be paid periodically over the life of the pledge, or in a lump sum at some future date. The Foundation accepts pledged gifts and will recognize them publicly and report at full value provided a pledge agreement is signed documenting the donor's decision. The pledge must be fully paid within five (5) years of signature or paid in installments over that period.

Pledge payments may be made annually, semi-annually, quarterly, monthly or on whatever reasonable schedule is requested by the donor. The Foundation will be responsible for recording, billing, and monitoring the status of all gifts and payments.

#### 3. Bequests

Gifts through wills and trusts shall be actively encouraged by the Foundation. Where persons indicate their intention to bequeath property other than cash or equivalents to the Foundation, the provisions of this policy shall be communicated to such persons where feasible and deemed appropriate.

Gifts from the estates of deceased donors shall be accepted subject to the terms of this policy. Foundation staff cannot assist with the drafting of a will and trust, and cannot act as witnesses to the drafting of a donor's will.

If a donor is declared not competent and in their right mind and wishes to arrange a planned gift, the Foundation will consult with that donor's designated power-of-attorney.

Bequests will be reported at the time they mature unless the bequest is made irrevocable.

#### 4. Securities

#### i. Publicly Traded Securities

Readily marketable securities, such as those traded on the New York Stock Exchange or NASDAQ, can be accepted by the Foundation. A gift of securities normally would be liquidated immediately. However, if the form or designation of the gift allows the possibility that it will be directed to an endowment, a decision regarding the liquidation of the securities will be deferred until that determination is made. If the funds are to be directed to an endowment fund, the certificates will be given to the endowment's investment manager who will then act on the Board's decision regarding whether to sell or hold the securities, which decision will be made on portfolio considerations.

For gift crediting and accounting purposes, the value of the gift of securities is the median of the high and low prices on the date of the gift to the Foundation.

No agreement shall be made with a donor prior to or subsequent to a gift that such securities will be held for any period of time. Securities transfer instructions will be given by the Foundation upon request.

ii. Closely Held or Non-Publicly Traded Securities Acceptance of closely held or non-publicly traded securities may be approved by the Foundation Board upon recommendation of the Finance Committee. Acknowledgement will state no value and the donor must decide the value with their own tax advisor. No commitment for repurchase of closely held securities shall be made prior to completion of the gift of the securities.

For gift crediting and accounting purposes, closely held or non-publicly traded securities may only be accepted after receipt and review of an appraisal qualified under relevant Internal Revenue Code requirements. Generally, appraisal fees are the responsibility of the donor.

# 5. Charitable Remainder and Lead Trusts

The Foundation encourages those interested in doing so to establish charitable remainder or lead trusts for the benefit of the organization. Such trusts shall not be marketed as tax avoidance devices or as investment vehicles, as it is understood such activity may violate federal and/or state securities regulations.

The Foundation will not serve as trustee of a charitable remainder or lead trust of which it is the beneficiary. The fees for management of a charitable remainder or lead trust will only be paid by the Foundation upon prior approval of the Board's Finance Committee. The Foundation will consider paying fees for the creation of a CRT or CLT if the Foundation is the sole and irrevocable beneficiary.

The Foundation will make no representations as to performance of trust assets or the manner in which charitable remainder or lead trust assets will be managed or invested by any corporate fiduciary who may be recommended by the Foundation, its employees or directors.

For gift crediting and accounting purposes of a charitable lead trusts, the initial recognition should be measured at the present value of the future distributions to be received by the Foundation.

For gift crediting and accounting purposes of a charitable remainder trusts, the fair value of the contribution may be estimated based on the fair value of the assets contributed by the donor, less the fair value of the payments to be made to other beneficiaries.

#### 6. Endowed Scholarships, Program Operating or Awards

An endowment is one in which the initial funds given to establish a fund that is invested, and only the return from the principal may be distributed for the restricted purpose. In accordance with Ventura College Foundation Investment Policies, distributions from endowments are awarded on a yearly basis. A minimum of \$25,000 is required for all new endowments. A donor may, however, take up to five years to build a fund to the minimum \$25,000 endowment level. In cases where the endowment minimum is not reached within three years, the Foundation, in conjunction with the donor where possible, will have the right to transfer the balance of the fund into another Foundation endowed account.

In the event that it becomes no longer possible to hold funds in endowment under the terms originally prescribed by the donor of such funds, applicable state laws will determine the subsequent use of such funds.

Endowment gifts will follow the reporting structures based on the vehicle (e.g., cash, pledge, securities, etc.) through which the endowment is established.

### 7. Non-Endowed Scholarships

Non-endowed scholarships may be accepted at any time. These funds may be expended immediately or at the discretion of the Foundation in agreement with the donor. The minimum amount needed to create a scholarship is \$1,200.

Non-endowed scholarships will follow the reporting structures based on the vehicle (e.g., cash, pledge, securities, etc.) through which the scholarship is established.

#### 8. Gifts-In-Kind

Decisions on the acceptance or refusal of Gifts-in-Kind (e.g., gifts of materials, equipment, services) will be made by the academic deans in consultation with the VC Vice President of Business Services and Foundation Executive Director.

Gifts-In-Kind with a value equal to or less than \$5,000 shall be recorded on the Ventura College Foundation's financial records at the donor's estimated value or at fair market value, if independent verification of that value of the gift is provided.

Independent verification may include written qualified independent appraisal of the donated property in accordance with IRS regulations, a vendor's invoice indicating the item's cost to the vendor in order to substantiate the fair market value of the goods donated, or the donor's original purchase price.

Gifts-In-Kind with a value exceeding \$5,000 shall be recorded on the Ventura College Foundation's financial records at the value based on a written qualified independent

appraisal of the donated property. Generally, appraisal fees are the responsibility of the donor.

See Section 1 under "Gifts Accepted Subject to Prior Review" for more details on gifts of tangible personal property such as jewelry, artwork, collections, and other personal property.

# 9. Payroll Deduction

Payroll deduction is a simple way for District employees to make a charitable gift to the College. Donors need to complete the Payroll Deduction form. Payroll deductions will be reported at face value.

# 10. Corporate Matching Gifts

Many businesses (or their foundations) offer a matching gift program whereby they will match all or a portion of an employee's contribution to a qualified charitable organization. The formula used to compute the matching amount varies from firm to firm. The Foundation will encourage all donors to apply for matching gift funds when possible. Corporate matching gifts will be reported at face value with a soft credit recognition to the donor who requested the match.

### 11. Student Fundraising

All students interested in fundraising for a Ventura College club, organization or other campus purpose must do so under the supervision of the *Vice President of Student Services or appointed designee*, must adhere to the policies and procedures of **Ventura College**, and must coordinate their plans with the **Foundation**.

#### Gifts Accepted Subject to Prior Review

Certain forms of gifts or donated properties may be subject to review prior to acceptance. The reported value of each of these types of gifts will be determined by the individual situation. Examples of gifts subject to prior review include, but are not limited to:

# 1. Tangible Personal Property

Jewelry, artwork, collections, and other personal property will be accepted only after prior approval of the Foundation Finance Committee on a case-by-case basis. The Foundation will consider all gifts of tangible personal property after it has made two determinations: the asset's marketability and its intended use by the Foundation. Careful consideration will be given where the Foundation is obligated to maintain ownership of the property in perpetuity. The Foundation generally discourages gifts of livestock.

Questions the Foundation will consider regarding the acceptance of tangible personal property may include:

- Does the property fulfill the mission of the Foundation?
- Is the property marketable?
- Are there any undue restrictions on the use, display, or sale of the property?

- Are there any public relations issues related to acceptance of the property?
- Are there carrying costs, such as insurance, lease space, maintenance to preserve value, costs of sale or appraisal that will create a negative cash flow for the Foundation?

Personal Property may only be accepted after receipt and review of an appraisal qualified under relevant Internal Revenue Code requirements. Generally, appraisal fees are the responsibility of the donor.

#### 2. Gifts of Life Insurance

The Foundation will consider all gifts of life insurance and will encourage donors to name the Foundation as the exclusive beneficiary for life insurance policies. The Foundation will also accept the naming of the Foundation as partial interest beneficiary of life insurance policies. An offer of life settlement policies is generally discouraged and will be carefully reviewed by the Finance Committee. Gifts of whole life, variable and universal life policies are accepted contingent on the policies below. The Foundation can also be named as a beneficiary of a term insurance policy.

Criteria for acceptance of life insurance policies:

- i. The policy is either paid-up or if not paid-up as of the date of the gift:
  - has a minimum face value of \$50,000;
  - has a payment schedule not to exceed twelve (12) years and which assumes an interest rate not to exceed the average historical dividend rate for the prior three-year period (for existing policies an "in force" illustration will be required); and
  - requires a written pledge of a charitable contribution from the donor to the Foundation in a total amount which equals or exceeds the total premiums due, and with pledge payments scheduled so as to equal or exceed each policy premium payment as that payment becomes due. This written pledge also will acknowledge the absolute ownership by the Foundation of the policy given and acknowledge the resulting right of the Foundation to cash-in the policy and apply the proceeds of the same in accordance with donor intent.
- ii. The Foundation is designated as the owner and the beneficiary of the policy. While the policy will identify the Foundation as the beneficiary, there should also be a written agreement between the donor and the Foundation to transfer ownership of the policy to the Foundation.

# 3. Real Property

It is the policy of the Foundation to accept gifts of real property, both improved and unimproved, on a case-by-case basis. Gifts of real property shall be accepted only after prior approval of the Finance Committee. No timeshare property gifts shall be accepted.

The Foundation may accept gifts of oil and gas interests in the form of royalty or mineral interests in accordance with this policy. The Foundation will not accept gifts of oil and gas interests in the form of working interests without prior consultation with and approval of the Finance Committee.

Generally, the Foundation will attempt to sell any property received as a gift at a reasonable price, as reflected by the current market as soon as possible. Property must be offered for sale to the public before sale to the Foundation directors, District trustees and employees, or their families. The Foundation may require the following information in order to consider acceptance of a gift of real property:

- A title insurance commitment showing marketable title in the donor, free and clear of unacceptable encumbrances, issues by a reputable title insurance company;
- An MAI (Member Appraisal Institute) appraisal by a qualified appraiser;
- A phase one environmental audit by a qualified engineer indicating that ownership will not expose the Foundation to environmental liabilities;
- At the election of the Foundation, a market feasibility study for the property;
- ALTA (American Land Title Association) survey of the property by a registered land surveyor;
- Evidence of compliance with ADA (when applicable);
- A review of leases (for commercial property);
- A disclosure statement for residential property (when applicable).

Under applicable Treasury regulations, a donor is advised to pay for any initial appraisal made on the property. It is generally the responsibility of the donor to pay all costs incurred in transfer of the property including the cost of compliance with any of the Foundation's requirements outlined above.

Special attention shall be given to a proposed gift of real estate encumbered by a mortgage that will not be paid in full by the donor at the time of transfer. The Foundation's ownership of such encumbered real property may generate unrelated business income to the Foundation pursuant to the IRC and disqualification of certain split interest gifts.

Real property will be acknowledged by description and valued initially by the Foundation at \$1.00 per legal description. The Foundation will report such gifts to the Finance Committee at their next meeting for their review. If the Finance Committee assigns a different value to the gift, it will be booked at the assigned value. The donor is advised to consult their own counsel in establishing the value of their gift for tax purposes. If, after review, a value other than \$1.00 has been assigned to the gift by the Finance Committee, the Foundation will so advise the donor and provide written documentation.

#### 4. Other Property

Other property such as mortgages, notes, copyrights, royalties, and easements, whether real or personal, may be accepted after prior approval of the Finance Committee. Debt-encumbered property will not be accepted. Special consideration shall be given to the nature of any gift of property, whether real or personal, as to whether it is in keeping with the mission of the Foundation prior to acceptance by the Foundation. Property must be offered for sale to the public before sale to the Foundation directors, District trustees and employees, or their families.

#### 5. Digital Assets

The Foundation may accept gifts of cryptocurrency (specifically bitcoin, ether, syscoin, and litecoin), nonfungible tokens, and other forms of digital assets only after due diligence is performed to determine that the asset is able to be transferred to the Foundation and liquidated and that risks associated with market volatility (if the digital asset is not immediately liquidated), adoption of any new technology platforms, and a clear understanding of the proper accounting treatment are considered. The Finance Committee shall review and decide whether to accept cryptocurrency.

# **CAMPAIGNS**

A fundraising campaign (Campaign) is a strategic effort to raise funds during a specific period of time. Campaigns can focus on specific projects or endowments or can support the Foundation generally. The Foundation Executive Director can recommend a Campaign focus and period of time based on the needs of VC, and with the approval of the Foundation Board of Directors, the Foundation can enter a Campaign.

#### 1. Gift Counting

To be eligible for credit toward the Campaign, the Foundation must receive a contribution or the intent to give, communicated in writing, at any time during the active fundraising (solicitation) phase of this campaign. The campaign timeline may be adjusted as appropriate with approval from the Board of Directors.

#### 2. Campaign Reporting

In reporting total fundraising production to date during the course of the Campaign, the summary report will reflect the following totals:

- Total goal,
- Total commitments to date and percentage of total goal raised,
- Anticipated gifts from prospects solicited,
- The project totals (sum of commitments and anticipated gifts) and percentage of the total goal raised based on the projected totals.

# 3. Definitions for Campaign Reporting

Total commitments to date should reflect total gifts reported to date that are documented in accordance with the policies noted below.

Anticipated gifts should reflect any solicitation that has been made but a commitment has not yet been made and the prospect is still seriously considering a gift. The anticipated gift amount should be determined as part of the post-solicitation debriefing process, where one or more of the participants in the solicitation makes a best estimate as to the size of gift the prospect is likely to make.

The anticipated gift could range from zero to the full amount the prospect was asked to consider. A conservative approach should be taken in establishing each anticipated gift amount.

Occasionally, a donor will indicate they do not want to make a pledge or sign a pledge agreement but has every intention to renew their gift over each of the next few years. These Single-Year Donors (SYD) should not be reported in total production until they have been, in fact, documented.

However, SYD probable commitments should be documented by name and tracked separately so that their eventual total gift potential is fully realized. In many instances, it will be possible and appropriate to revisit a SYD for a second or even third such gift prior to the formal wrap-up of the campaign. With continued tracking, most can be anticipated to give during each year of the full five-year payment period.

# 4. Reconciling Differences between Campaign Reporting and Financial Accounting

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) requires accountants to discount and/or not book certain pledged multi-year commitments to a Campaign. Therefore, campaign production as reported, using the methods described above, cannot generally be reconciled with the organization's annual financial accounting reporting. The Foundation will prepare financial statements on a GAAP and Modified GAAP basis which will be audited by independent CPA's.

# 5. Donor-Restricted and Donor-Designated Campaign Gifts

Campaigns seek temporarily restricted gifts that are designated to the Campaign fund and/or purpose as designated by the Foundation. By law, these gifts must be used for this purpose.

Donors may, under certain circumstances, designate their gifts to a particular use by the Foundation within the context of the Campaign. Donor-designated gifts will be reviewed by the Finance Committee to assure that using the funds according to the donor's wishes is feasible and practical. For example, a gift designated to support a project that is not part of the Campaign, if accepted, would not be reportable as a gift to this campaign but would count toward the Foundation's overall contributions goal and be treated properly on audited financial statements.

#### 6. Deferred Gifts in Campaigns

Unrestricted planned gifts (or gifts restricted to a specific campaign element) of any size (bequests and other maturing planned gifts, irrevocable planned gift commitments, etc.), received during a Campaign period will be credited toward the total goal.

Unless deferred giving is specifically outlined as a goal of the Campaign, deferred gift pledges cannot be counted towards the total goal (e.g., all cash is required over the pledge payment period to pay for project financing).

Deferred gifts will be actively solicited on behalf of the organization, where appropriate, as part of the Foundation's desire to build its endowment. It is essential that reasonable guidelines be in place to allow for a positive and timely response to such situations whenever they occur. Deferred gifts can be either revocable or irrevocable. Both types of deferred gifts will be accepted for the Foundation's endowment.

#### 7. All campaign gifts are assessed a 15% campaign administrative fee.

#### 8. Public Announcement of Campaign Gifts and Totals

Generally, no gifts or total dollar production for the Campaign should be publicly announced (except in reports to the Board of Directors), until the Foundation has achieved approximately 50 percent of the total goal as set at the start of the campaign. For this reason, donors should clearly understand that the Foundation has the right to determine (in consultation with the donor) how and when a public announcement of the gift is made. Conversely, the Foundation will not publicly announce (e.g., through a news release), a Campaign gift without first clearing the announcement with the donor.

# **PAYMENT OF FEES RELATED TO GIFTS**

#### 1. Sustainability Gift

The VC Foundation Board of Directors passed that a 10% sustainability gift will be charged to all restricted donations (excluding campaign gifts) to sustain and strengthen ongoing professional operations.

Sustainability gift will be applied to all grant funds unless grant funder policies prevent the foundation from doing so.

#### 2. Finders Fees or Commissions

The Foundation will pay no fee to any person as consideration for directing a gift to the Foundation.

#### 3. Professional Fees

Donors are encouraged to assume the cost of professional services rendered in connection with the completion of a gift to the Foundation.



#### 4. Professional Counsel

Prospective donors shall be encouraged to seek their own legal and/or tax counsel. The Foundation will consult with its own legal counsel with respect to complex gift arrangements.

#### RESTRICTIONS

Any gift restrictions must comply with the guidelines detailed in the gift acceptance policy statements and shall be in compliance with the law.

#### RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

All the outright gift methods mentioned above will be acknowledged in a personal letter (and receipt if appropriate) from the Foundation to the donor for his/her tax records.

Donors' gifts of \$50,000 or more will be announced to the Board of Directors and recognized publicly in the Venture College Foundation Honor Roll on the Foundation official website and in press releases. Complimentary membership in the Ventura College Foundation President's Circle will be provided to the donor with all attendant benefits.

As soon as a donor informs the Foundation of a planned gift, that donor will be inducted into the Ventura College Foundation Legacy Society<sup>1</sup> with all its attendant benefits.

In addition to the recognition requirements above, gifts will also be recognized according to the campaign to which it is being applied and will follow the recognition guidelines established for each campaign.

For instance, campaigns may offer donors various naming opportunities to be acknowledged by plaques at the site and/or listings on a future donor display on campus. Such naming opportunities must be pre-approved by the Ventura County Community College District (VCCCD) (See "Naming Opportunities"). Gifts will only be recognized as campaign gifts if the gift value falls under the established campaign reporting requirements.

Careful provisions will be made for honoring the wishes of anyone who may desire to contribute to the Foundation and yet remain anonymous. Inquiries should be encouraged through a third party or directly with a member of the Foundation board or development staff.

#### **NAMING OPPORTUNITIES**

Naming opportunities offer donors the occasion to help VC in a meaningful manner while establishing a tangible acknowledgement to their own success or life work. Naming opportunities may be used to honor living individuals or friends or family members of the donor or in memory of a loved one.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Name Pending



Naming opportunities involving the College's physical facilities must be pre-approved by the VCCCD, in accordance with guidelines established by the VCCCD Board of Trustees. Planned gift naming opportunities are also available if the Foundation is presented with a copy of the irrevocable document.

# **SUNSET CLAUSE**

The naming rights associated with a gift shall be valid for a period of years agreed upon by the donor, foundation and VCCCD. At the conclusion of this period, the college reserves the right to reassess and, if necessary, reevaluate the terms of the naming agreement. The college will engage in good faith discussions with the original donor or their representatives to determine the future status of the naming rights. (Refer to General Policy Guidelines Item #10, page 2)

If, upon reaching the expiration of the naming period, the donor or their representatives are unable or unwilling to renew the naming rights, the college may consider soliciting alternative naming opportunities, subject to applicable policies and procedures in place at that time.



# **APPENDIX A: DONOR BILL OF RIGHTS**

Philanthropy is based on voluntary action for the common good. It is a tradition of giving and sharing that is primary to the quality of life. To assure that philanthropy merits the respect and trust of the general public, and that donors and prospective donors can have full confidence in the not-for-profit organizations and causes they are asked to support, we declare that all donors have these rights:

- I. To be informed of the organization's mission, of the way the organization intends to use donated resources, and of its capacity to use donations effectively for their intended purposes.
- II. To be informed of the identity of those serving on the organization's governing board, and to expect the board to exercise prudent judgment in its stewardship responsibilities.
- III. To have access to the organization's most recent financial statements.
- IV. To be assured their gifts will be used for the purposes for which they were given.
- V. To receive appropriate acknowledgement and recognition.
- VI. To be assured that information about their donation is handled with respect and with confidentiality to the extent provided by law.
- VII. To expect that all relationships with individuals representing organizations of interest to the donor will be professional in nature.
- VIII. To be informed whether those seeking donations are volunteers, employees of the organization or hired solicitors.
- IX. To have the opportunity for their names to be deleted from mailing lists that an organization may intend to share.
- X. To feel free to ask questions when making a donation and to receive prompt, truthful and forthright answers.

The Donor Bill of Rights was created by the Association of Fundraising Professionals (AFP), the Association for Healthcare Philanthropy (AHP), the Council for Advancement and Support of Education (CASE), and the Giving Institute: Leading Consultants to Non-Profits. It has been endorsed by numerous organizations.

# **APPENDIX B: VCCCD - Naming Buildings Policy**

Book: VCCCD Board Policy Manual

Section: Chapter 6 Business and Fiscal Affairs

Title: BP 6620 Naming Buildings

Code: BP 6620 Status: Active

Adopted: October 9, 2007 Last Reviewed: August 14, 2012

The Board of Trustees retains the authority for naming all facilities and properties; i.e., all buildings; major portions of buildings; stadium and fields and other areas of major assembly or activity; and all other highly visible facilities and properties, landscape items or features, limited outdoor areas, and other minor properties.

This policy is intended to encourage private support to our colleges through opportunities to name District facilities and properties and only by extraordinary circumstances should facilities and properties be named without a gift.

Each proposal for naming a facility or property shall be considered on its own merits. No commitment for naming shall be made prior to Trustee approval of the proposed name, which shall be submitted to the Board for action through the Chancellor.

The name of a District facility must lend prestige to the college District. Candidates for recognition may be persons or groups who have made a significant contribution to the institution, or a contribution to humankind and who are generally known for permanent significance in the fields of government, the arts, letters, sciences, social sciences or through business and industry.

All recommendations shall comply with the following criteria:

Specific Conditions for Consideration:

A name of a District facility or property presented for Board approval must honor an individual or organization and must meet the following criteria:

#### 1. When a donor gift is involved:

It is desirable for the District to name facilities and properties in honor of significant contributions of funds to the District.

The Board will take into consideration the significance and amount of the proposed gift as either or both relate to the realization or completion of a facility or property or the enhancement of a facility's or property's usefulness to the District.

Facilities and properties may be named for individuals or for organizations responsible for a "substantial gift" benefiting a college within the District.

The term "substantial gift" in this context is deliberately not defined by arbitrary standards or by a specific dollar amount. Its interpretation is meant to be flexible so that each situation may be judged on its own merits and may take into account significant contributions of personal services as well as monetary or in-kind gifts. It is expected that each naming opportunity will recognize the donor according to the level of a gift and size of facility.

A donor gift can provide the funding for that portion of the total cost that would not have been available from any other source.

2. In rare instances when no donor gift is involved:

It should honor a person who has achieved unique distinction in higher education and other significant areas of public service, or who has made extraordinary contributions to a college or the District that warrant special recognition, or who has served the District in an administrative capacity and who, during administrative service, made extraordinary contributions to a college or the District that warrant special recognition.

When a proposal for naming in honor of an individual involves service to the District in an academic or administrative capacity, a proposal shall not be made until the individual has been retired or deceased at least three (3) years.

No more than one facility or property shall be named after any one individual.

No facility or property will be named after seated, elected or appointed officials.

In special circumstances, the Board of Trustees may waive any or all of the above criteria.

Each naming request must:

- a) Be submitted at least six (6) weeks prior to the Board of Trustees' meeting at which the item is to be presented.
- b) Demonstrate compliance with Board of Trustees' policy.
- c) Succinctly stated reasons for the proposed name. Include complete biographical data about the individual or organization.
- d) Ensure that all participants involved in this process remember that strict confidentiality is required.
- e) Identify the "special circumstance" when requesting a waiver to this procedure, if any.